ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 6, 2006
3:44 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Kott
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David Guttenberg

VEVBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 445
"An Act relating to the alternative energy grant fund and to
alternative energy grants."”

- MOVED CSHB 445(L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 392
"An Act authorizing the establishnment of regional solid waste
managenment authorities.”

- MOVED CSHB 392(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 51

"An Act relating to permtting enployers in the sanme trade to
form joint insurance arrangenents for self-insured workers
conpensati on coverage."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 424
"An Act relating to nortgage |enders and persons who engage in
activities relating to nortgage |ending; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 424(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2006



BILL: HB 445
SHORT TI TLE: ALTERNATI VE ENERGY GRANT FUND
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVAS

02/ 13/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 06 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 06/ 06 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

Bl LL: HB 392

SHORT TITLE: SOLI D WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORI TI ES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

01/ 25/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 06 (H CRA, L&C

02/ 09/ 06 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 09/ 06 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 06 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 14/ 06 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 14/ 06 (H) Moved CSHB 392(CRA) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 14/ 06 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 17/ 06 (H CRA RPT CS(CRA) NT 4DP 2NR

02/ 17/ 06 (H DP: Cl SSNA, KOTT, THOMVAS, OLSON;
02/ 17/ 06 (H NR: SALMON, NEUMAN

03/ 06/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 51

SHORT TITLE: EMPLOYER ASSN FOR WORKERS COWP | NS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 05

01/ 10/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 18/ 06 (H SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 18/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 06 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 10/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 10/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 06 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 06/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 424
SHORT TI TLE. MORTGAGE LENDI NG
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 03/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 03/ 06 (H) L&C, JUD

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2006



03/ 01/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 01/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 01/ 06 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 06/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 445.

KACI SCHRCEDER- HOTCH, St aff

to Representative Thomas, Sponsor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during hearing on HB
445.

CHRI S ROSE, Executive Director

Renewabl e Energy Al aska Proj ect

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Characterized HB 445 as a good start and
suggest ed sone changes.

CONNI E FREDENBERG, Nat ural Resources Coor di nat or

Al eutian Pribilof |Islands Association

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Characterized HB 445 as a good start and
suggest ed sone changes.

GREG KI NGSLEY, Pl anni ng Conmi ssi on

Lake and Peni nsul a Bor ough

Pilot Point, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing of HB 445, discussed the
Lake and Peni nsul a Borough's situation.

RON M LLER, Executive Director

Al aska I ndustrial Export & Devel opnment Authority and

Al aska Energy Authority

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expl ained the grant program established
under HB 445.

SARAH FI SHER- GOADE, Al aska Energy Authority
Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2006



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing of HB 445, answered
guesti ons.

PETER CRI MP, Program Manager

Al ternative Energy and Energy Efficiency

Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing of HB 445, answered
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 392.

BECKY ROONEY, Staff

to Representative WIson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 392.

ROLLO POOL, Executive Director

Sout heast Conf erence

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

Cl NDY ROBERTS, Denali Conm ssion

Di vision of Community Advocacy

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

JOHN BOLLING City Adm nistrator

Cty of Craig;

Menber, Sout heast Conference

Crai g, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

DAN EASTON, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Environnental Conservation

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 392.

RUTH HAM LTON HEESE, Assistant Attorney Genera
Envi ronnental Section

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2006



Cvil Division - Juneau

Depart nent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing of HB 392, answered
guesti ons.

M CHAEL PAW.OWSKI, St aff

to Representative Kevin Myer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of HB
51, Representative Meyer

ROBERT VOGEL

Pro G oup Managenent

Carson City, Nevada

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 51.

RAY HI CKEL, President

Anchorage Home Buil ders Associ ation (AHBA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Rel ated that the AHBA, the Alaska State
Hone Builders Association (ASHBA), and the Associated GCeneral
Contractors - Board of Realtors support HB 51.

LARRY PARTUSCH

Anchorage Home Buil ders Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 51.

KENNETH GAI N, Secretary/ Treasurer

| ndependent Lenders of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 424 [Version F].

JOHN MARTI N, Executive Manager

Al aska Mortgage Sol utions

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 424.

JOHN CARMAN, Presi dent

Home State Mortgage;

Legislative Commttee Chair, Al aska Mrrtgage Bankers Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Characterized [CSHB 424, Version F] as good
| egi sl ati on.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2006



JOE BRAMVER, Manager

1st Metropolitan Mortgage;

Legi sl ati ve Board

Al aska Associ ation of Mrtgage Brokers

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 424.

CRI' S SKI NNER, Presi dent/ Broker

Kel star Fi nancial of Al aska Mrtgage Conpany;

Legislative Commttee, Al aska Association of Mrtgage Brokers
Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 424.

TI M KELLY, Lobbyi st

| ndependent Lenders of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Rel ated the I ndependent Lenders of Al aska's
support for [Version F].

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

REPRESENTATI VE NORVAN ROKEBERG, ACTING CHAIR called the House
Labor and Comerce Standing Comrittee neeting to order at
3:44:47 PM  Representatives Lynn, LeDoux, CGuttenberg, Crawford,
and Rokeberg were present at the call to order. Representative
Kott arrived as the neeting was in progress.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG announced that he would tenporarily
chair the neeting.

HB 445- ALTERNATI VE ENERGY GRANT FUND

ACTI NG CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO. 445, "An Act relating to the alternative
energy grant fund and to alternative energy grants.”

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG nade a notion to adopt CSHB 445,
Version 24-1S1311\L, Cook, 2/24/06, as the working docunent.
There being no objection, Version L was before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, Al aska State Legislature, Sponsor of
HB 445, informed the conmmittee that HB 445 would take [$0.10]
per barrel of oil and place it into an alternative energy fund,

which is estimated to generate around $30 mllion per year. He
said that the funds would be taken out only when oil prices are
at $35 per barrel or higher. He explained that the Al aska

Energy Authority (AEA) would nmanage the fund and adm nister

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2006



grants of up to $20 mllion to power utilities who have shown a

need. In addition, he said, the [utilities] would be required
to secure matching funds equal to 25 percent of the grant. He
stated that the priority would be given to those areas which
experience higher <costs of fossil fuels. He said that
"alternative energy" nmeans a system which produces energy and is
not dependant on fossil fuel; however, nat ur al gas is

acceptabl e, as sone rural comunities have small gas fields they
may be able to "tap into" in order to generate electricity. He
expl ained that an "electric utility" is an entity which provides
power for public consunption.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS went on to explain that Yakutat uses
around 1 mllion gallons of diesel per year. He pointed out
that ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc. has gas wells nine mles from
Yakut at . Therefore, if the funding were available, [the
comunity of Yakutat] would be able to run a gas line into town
to run the generators. He said that in addition to Yakutat,
there are many other areas needing assistance. He stated that
if an area has additional projects, it would be able to submt
addi tional grant applications. He added that this would help to
create jobs throughout Al aska. He nentioned that he represents
many fishing communities in the state. He then opined that the
high cost of electricity negatively affects the anobunt of noney
that cones back to the state. In regard to the alternative
energy grant fund, he said that this would free up [power cost
equal i zation] funds which can then be used for areas that are

still reliant on fossil fuel. In conclusion, Representative
Thomas said that the alternative energy grant fund would help
stimulate the econony in rural comunities, in addition to

endi ng the dependence on fossil fuels.
3:50:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that in Version L, page 2, the
definition of "alternative energy project” renoves the reference
to "nuclear fuel". He asked if this is the only change.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied yes, and noted that "nuclear fue
for the supply of energy"” was replaced with "other than natura
gas for the supply of energy.™

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the legislature is required to
appropriate noney for the alternative energy grant fund.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said that although the |legislature may
appropriate the anount calculated by the Departnent of Revenue
the bill does not create a dedicated fund.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why there is a fiscal note if there
is not a dedicated fund.

3:52: 04 PM

KACI SCHROEDER- HOTCH, Staff to Representative Thomas, Sponsor,
explained that the fiscal note estimates the anount of funds
that would be available for grants, if the |egislature decided
to appropriate the funds.

ACTI NG CHAI R ROKEBERG asked if there is a fiscal note from the
Department of Natural Resources or the Departnent of Revenue
regardi ng the $0. 10.

REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS replied no, and added that the AEA has
stated that, at this tinme, it would not cost AEA any additiona
funds to run the grant system

ACTI NG CHAI R ROKEBERG remarked that this bill would lower [the
states] revenue by $30 nmillion a year, yet does not have a
fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS agreed that there is a cost to the
program

3:54: 09 PM

CHRI' S ROSE, Executive Director, Renewable Energy Al aska Project
(REAP), explained that the REAP is a statewde coalition of
large and snmall utility conpanies, conservation groups, and
Nat i ve organi zati ons which share the sane goal of increasing the
production of renewable energy in the state. He said that the
REAP believes that HB 445 is a "great start” toward nore energy
production in the state, adding that Al aska is one of 15 states
in the country that does not have a renewabl e energy policy. He
opined that [establishing an alternative energy grant fund]
woul d be policy statenment that the state can make in order to
begin providing incentives to increase the production of
renewabl e energy. He said that Al aska has sone of the best
sources of renewabl e energy resources in the country.

MR ROSE said that by providing an incentive for renewable
energy production, the state will be attracting technol ogy and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2006



know edge- based workers to the state. In addition, he said,
there are over 200 villages in the state that are reliant on

diesel, and as the price of oil <continues to rise, these
villages will continue to have a problem neeting the basic
needs. He stated that there are many projects throughout the

state which woul d be hel ped by this |egislation.

MR ROSE went on to say that Alaska has the opportunity to

beconre a world leader in renewable energy. He stated that
several villages are experinmenting with w nd-diesel technol ogy,
adding that it is "working very well." He opined that this
technology could be exported to the world. In regard to

i ncluding natural gas, he said that the REAP is focused on w nd,
geot hermal , bi omass, ocean power, and hydro-electric. He opined
that the Ilanguage regarding project eligibility could be
st rengt hened. He said that the REAP would also like to suggest
amending the bill to include |oans and production credits, which
it believes would be a good vehicle to get these projects up and
runni ng.

[ Representative Rokeberg passed the gavel to Representative
Kott. ]

3:58: 21 PM

CONNI E  FREDENBERG, Nat ur al Resources Coordi nator, Al euti an
Pribilof Islands Association, inforned the commttee that she
woul d be speaking on her own behalf. She said that she would

like to echo the previous testinony. She stated that while this
| egislation is a good start, she would |like to see nore included
in the bill, such as a renewable portfolio standard, which
currently exist in 22 other states. In regard to PCE, she
surmsed that there may be a way to "tweak"” it so that it
provides nore incentive to develop renewable energy. Ms.
Fredenberg went on to say that she believes that AEA should have
nore guidance during the selection process, adding that it my
be hel pful to include nenbers fromrural Alaska on the selection
conmittee.

4:00: 28 PM

GREG KI NGSLEY, Pl anning Conm ssion, Lake and Peninsul a Borough

explained that the borough has been working on setting up
generators in two villages, along wth anenoneter studies.
Furthernore, the borough has been working for the last three
years to receive state and federal funding, which has been
difficult to acquire. He expressed agreenment with the previous

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 6, 2006



testinmony. He stated that addressing the high cost of energy is
the borough's top priority. He said that the borough is paying
$4. 10 per gallon for heating oil. He stated that the borough is
at risk of losing valuable infrastructure. He expl ai ned that
[Pilot Point] school enrollnment is down to 10 [students].
Moreover, there are four or five villages in the borough that
are "about ready to go under"” due to the high price of fossi
fuel. He added that when schools shut down, the entire village
shuts down, which affects the entire region.

4:02: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOMAS, in response to an earlier question,
stated that he would look into the renewable portfolio standard
provided by other states, and added that he has been working
with AEA and REAP. He stated that in the past, the Denali
Comm ssion has funded these projects with federal nonies, and
opined that the Congressional Delegation is hopeful that the
state will "step up to the plate.” He reiterated that this bill
woul d use AEA, which is already in place, and would not cost
addi ti onal funds.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked why the grants are limted to
electric utilities. He surm sed that there nmay be situations
when [the city] may have a viable project in which the utility
is not interested.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied that the bill is intended to
assist those nunicipalities which are in need of assistance with
the price of fuel

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG expressed concern with the definition
of "electric utility,” as foll ows:

(2) "electric wutility" neans a corporation, whether
publi c, cooperative, or ot herw se, conpany,
i ndi vi dual , or association of individuals, their
| essees, trustees, or receivers appointed by a court,
that owns, operates, nmnages, or controls a plant or
system for furnishing, by generation, transm ssion, or
distribution, electrical services to the public for
conpensati on.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the bill wuld require an
appropriation in the operating budget.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied that it wuld require an
appropriation each year, although it nmay not be the sanme anount
each year

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the appropriation is required.
REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied no.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the bill would require a fisca
note once the noney is appropriated.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS sai d yes.
4:07:01 PM
RON MLLER, Executive Director, Alaska Industrial Export &

Devel opnent Authority (Al DEA) and Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)
Department of Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, said

t hat the bill takes a "straight-forward" approach in
establishing a grant program within the AEA. He said that as
funds are appropriated, the AEA would incorporate the

alternative energy program and funds into the alternative energy
and energy efficiency assistance plan, as required under the

current regul ations. He stated that, if HB 445 were to pass,
the AEA would solicit a request for proposals based on the
criteria established in the bill. He stated that this criteria

is simlar to the AEA s Energy Cost Reduction Program which is
funded by the Denali Comm ssion. He stated that this program
sel ects projects based on life cycle savings.

4:09: 02 PM

SARAH FI SHER- GOADE, Al aska Energy Authority (AEA), Departnment of
Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Developnent, in response to a
guestion, explained that the fiscal note reflects the anpunt
that would be available for appropriation through the nechani sm
provided in HB 445. She opined that there would be an annual
appropriation requested to provide the fund transfer to the
alternative energy grant fund.

4:09:41 PM
ACTI NG CHAI R KOTT cl osed public testinony.

4:09: 58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD expressed that he has an active interest
in finding jobs and "new hope" for Al askans. He opined that
there is nuch potential in renewable energy, especially in rural
Al aska. He stated that this bill is making an effort to work
for the future of the state, nore jobs for Al askans, and
addi ti onal opportunity. He sai d, "l support this
whol eheartedly."

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said that while he is supportive of

the bill, he remains concerned regarding local utilities putting
effort into coming up with a grant proposal only to have the
| egi sl ature not appropriate the noney. He said "I hope that if
we do pass this ... we follow through with it [by] funding

projects that cone before us."

ACTING CHAIR KOIT referring to page 2, line 3, asked for nore
information regarding the determination of whether a project is
"econom cally viable."

PETER CRI MP, Program Manager, Alternative Energy and Energy
Ef ficiency, Al aska Energy Authority (AEA), Department  of
Commer ce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent, said:

W perform a life-cycle analysis of the status quo,

which is ... generally ... diesel usage. Then [we]
conpare the cost of [diesel usage] to the cost of the
proposed projects, including the initial capita
costs, the [operation, nmaintenance, and fuel] costs.
W ... bring that back to a net present value of
savi ngs. In the Energy Cost Reduction program that

[M. MIller] mentioned, we rank the projects based on
their benefit to cost ratio and select the projects
t hat way.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT, referring to page 2, lines 6-8, asked if
Anchorage would be used as the base for conparison of fossi
fuel costs.

MR CRIMP opined that if this portion of the bill is renoved
this would still favor the selection of projects in rural areas,
as the cost of diesel is higher. He said that the AEA has found
the savings to be greater in rural areas due to the cost of
di esel . He stated that if the use of diesel can be avoided by
using hydroelectric, this is "way ahead,” and added that this
could be detailed in regul ations.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2006



ACTING CHAIR KOIT asked if the sponsor would be anenable to
removi ng t he af orenenti oned | anguage.

4:14: 54 PM
REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied that this would be fine.

ACTING CHAIR KOTT opined that the AEA would use Anchorage area
costs, as no other area has | ower fossil fuel costs.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG opined that if, in a given year, there
were no other grant requests other than in Anchorage, the noney
coul d be used in Anchorage.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS stated that rural projects are typically
$6-$8 mllion versus the higher costs for |arger projects. He
stated that the intent was not to use Anchorage as the base for
cost s.

ACTI NG CHAIR KOIT said that he understands the intent and noted
that the bill would not be amended.

4:16: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD nmoved to report CSHB 445, Version 24-
LS1311\L, Cook, 2/24/06, out of <conmttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 445(L&C) was reported from the House Labor
and Comrerce Standing Comrittee.

HB 392- SOLI D WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHCRI TI ES

ACTING CHAIR KOIT announced that the next order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 392, "An Act authorizing the
establ i shment of regional solid waste nanagenent authorities.”

4:17:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor
informed the nenbers that a new conmttee substitute (CS) had
been drafted for the nenbers' consideration.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt CSHB 392, Version 24-

LS1227\ X, Bullock, 3/2/06, as the working docunent. There being
no objection, Version X was before the commttee.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 6, 2006



ACTING CHAIR KOTIT asked Representative WIlson to explain the
changes made in the CS.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ai ned that during the House Comrunity
and Regional Affairs Standing Conmttee (CRA) hearing on the
bill, a CS was drafted to change the authority |anguage to all ow
a municipality to opt out of an authority wthout causing that
authority to dissolve. She said that in addition to changing
the Solid Waste Managenent Authority statutes, the CS
i nadvertently nodified the Port Authority statutes. She stated
that the new CS renoves all |anguage that would nodify the Port
Aut hority statutes, as this was not the intent of the bill.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT remarked that he would have offered an
anmendnent to make this change if the CS had not been drafted.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON, in response to gquestions from
Representative LeDoux, said that the new CS renoves Sections 2
and 3, which dealt wth the Port Authority.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that she would like to have a nenber
of her staff explain the details of the |egislation.

4:21:02 PM

BECKY ROONEY, Staff to Representative WIson, Alaska State
Legislature, said that the Southeast Conference has spent [two]
years researching the legislation and has received grants to
identify the problens, suggest solutions, and generate |anguage
for the bill. She stated that the bill provides a nechanism
that can be useful all over the state; however, the sponsor is
mainly interested in the affect the bill will have on Southeast
Al aska. She said that each Al askan produces 6 1/2-7 pounds of
solid waste per day, which is a total of 2,125 tons per day. In
Sout heast Al aska, 250 tons of solid waste a day is generated,
which is over 90,000 tons per year. She stated that over the
past 10 years, Southeast Al aska has seen many l|landfills, waste-
to-energy plants, and incinerators close, which has caused
several communities to ship solid waste to super landfills in
the Lower 48. She explained that due to the high cost of
devel opi ng r egi onal solid wast e managemnent facilities,
i ndi vi dual communi ti es have been unable to take on this task.

M5. ROONEY went on to say that recycling and solid waste
di sposal is expensive, and Southeast Alaska comunities are
payi ng anywhere from $77-%$220 per ton to ship recyclables to
markets, and to ship solid waste to landfills, while in

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2006



Anchorage, it only costs $40 per ton to deal with solid waste
She said that the communities that ship solid waste to the Lower
48 ship a conbined average of 23,000 tons of nmunicipal waste
each year. This does not include the 32,000 tons processed in
Juneau. She stated that sonme Sout heast Al aska communities have
landfills nearing the [maximun] capacity, while others have
i nproper or un-permtted dunping sights. She said that the bil
would allow several comunities to form an authority, which
would allow them to produce a regional solution to deal wth
muni ci pal solid waste. She stated that the authority would keep
the noney spent on nunicipal waste disposal in Alaska, thus
hel pi ng the regional economny. She explained that the bill would
not affect how a nunicipality handles garbage pickup or any
ordi nances that govern nmandatory participation in a program

M5. ROONEY said that HB 392 is nodeled after the Port Authority
and requires that voters in each nunicipality approve the
authority. She said that the authority would have an
i ndependent |egal existence and would be able to issue bonds

borrow funds or enter into contracts. She stated that a board
woul d be responsible for creating the by-laws and regul ations
whi ch would govern the authority, adding that the board would
have representation from each municipality that is a nenber of
the authority. She explained that a nunicipality would be able
to withdraw wthout dissolving the authority; however, the
municipality would still be responsible for any existing
obligations to the authority. Ms. Rooney stated that once
formed, the authority would decide where a regional facility
woul d be |ocated, along with the technol ogies that would be used
to deal wth solid waste nanagenent. This could include
facilities for recycling, state of the art landfills, thermal-
reduction or waste-to-energy plants, conposting, and areas to
treat oily soils.

4:25:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG, referring to a letter in commttee
packets, asked if the concerns of the Attorney General have been
addr essed.

M5. ROONEY replied that these concerns have been addressed. She
said that she would provide a copy of the Iletter from
Legi slative Council, which includes answers to these concerns.

4:26:10 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD commented that in Europe, each honme has
a conpost pile and both hones and stores are charged for

di sposal of any garbage produced. He stated that during the
time when he was in Europe, the cost was $2.25 for a sticker to
pl ace one bag of garbage in the landfill. He said that this

reduced the anmpunt of garbage produced, as all biodegradable
materials were placed in a conpost pile. He expressed his w sh
to see the enphasis placed on individuals and businesses to do
what they can to reduce the anpunt of garbage produced. He
remar ked that the root of the problem needs to be addressed and
said "we throw too nmuch stuff away."

4:28:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the Minicipality of Anchorage
is in favor of or against the bill.

Muni ci pality of Anchorage had not been contacted; however, the
waste rmanagenent group that processes the garbage at the
Anchorage landfill was supportive of the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed concern with regard to the
i npact on the Municipality of Anchorage. He recalled that there
have been "garbage wars" in the past and expressed concern that
this may allow the municipality to create a port authority to
operate the landfill as a subterfuge to avoid the municipal tax
cap that is currently in place. He asked if Representative
Wl son has spoken with the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska
regarding who would be regulating the proposed Solid Wiste
Managenent Aut hority.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied that the Departnent of Law has
| ooked over several revisions to ensure that it would not affect
ot her areas. She stated that Rollo Pool would be able to give
nore detail regarding this issue.

4:31:31 PM

ROLLO POCL, Executive Director, Southeast Conference, related
t hat Sout heast Conference is supportive of HB 392. He i nfornmed
the commttee that over the last 15-20 years, practically every
community in Southeast Al aska has created a solid waste plan, a
recycling plan, and household hazardous waste. Fur t her nore,
nearly every report and study relates that comunities should
work together to solve the problenms as a group. However,
not hi ng has ever been done to [encourage] comunities to work
together on the issue. This legislation allows comunities to
coll aborate and cooperate on the «collection, sorting, and

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 6, 2006



di sposal of solid waste. This legislation provides an inportant
step for conmunities to address solid waste in a regional
f ashi on. Regarding the earlier question as to whether this
woul d be regul ated by the Regul atory Commi ssion of Al aska (RCA),
he opined that Southeast Conference would prefer it not to be
regul ated by the RCA because the communities wll operate the
process and will do so in full view of the community. He noted
that he has had no correspondence from the RCA that it should
regul ate the proposed authority.

4:33:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if M. Pool had talked with the
RCA regarding its current regulatory authority. He indicated
his understanding that the RCA is trying to |eave the garbage
busi ness.

MR POOL said that he didn't speak with the RCA However,
di scussions with the Departnment of Law revealed that the
regulation could [be perfornmed by the comrunities or the RCA]
dependi ng upon Sout heast Conference's preference. He reiterated
that the Southeast Conference doesn't want [the proposed
authorities] to be regulated by the RCA because they will be in

the public donmain. In further response to Representative
Rokeberg, M. Pool highlighted that every comunity in Southeast
Al aska is different. For exanple, Juneau has a private haul er
and a landfill; Sitka has a private carrier for its garbage; and
Haines has a privately owned landfill. The renai nder of the
region has publicly owed [waste facilities]. He noted that

nost of the publicly owned landfills do not accept raw garbage
and thus construction and denmplition debris and itens that
aren't inert aren't all owed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired as to how an authority would
deal with the private services.

MR POOL said that the currently operating landfills could
become a player in a regional solution. He informed the
conmttee that a plan reviewed those communities that are
currently shipping waste, which anmounts to about one-third of
t he garbage in Sout heast Al aska. M. Pool opined that it would
be cheaper to ship waste [within the region versus out of the
state]. He nentioned the possibility of capturing energy from
the waste. This is a long-term project, and he said that
whatever it considered would have a life expectancy of 25-50
years.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2006



4:37:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed concerned that under HB 392,
the authority can be established and collect waste, which could
result in a potential conflict between private enterprise and
the state authority.

4:37:49 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON replied that the intent is [for the
authority] to deal with the waste once it is delivered to the
har bor/ port. This legislation, through the authority, allows
the comunities to save noney while not interfering with how the
communi ties handle their waste.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that page 1 specifies that
the purpose of the solid waste authority includes storage,
collection, transportation, separation, processing, recycling,
and di sposal .

M5. ROONEY said that HB 392 doesn't hanper any nunicipality's
col l ection services. The reference to "collection" refers to
the time after it has been coll ected. She clarified that it
speaks to waste | eaving the [comunity].

4:39:50 PM
Cl NDY ROBERTS, Denal i Comm ssi on, Division of Communi ty
Advocacy, Depart ment of Conmmer ce, Communi ty, & Econonic

Devel opnent (DCCED), infornmed the commttee that she manages the
solid waste grant program She related that in fiscal year (FY)
04 the Denali Conm ssion was pleased to work with the Southeast
Conference to create the language in HB 392 for which she
rel ated support. Ms. Roberts highlighted that while HB 392 is
important for Southeast Alaska specifically, the legislation

presents opportunities for comunities [in other regions]. For
i nstance, last sumrer over 1 mllion pounds of hazardous waste
and steel was brought out of the Yukon drainage by a nonprofit
or gani zat i on. | f sonme of the communities along the Yukon River
could utilize HB 392 to form an authority and thereby have
funds, it <could help them do a better job. Ms. Roberts

concluded by strongly encouraging the conmttee to support HB
392.

4:43: 15 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2006



JOHN BOLLING City Admnistrator, Cty of Craig; Menber,
Sout heast Conference, echoed earlier testinony regarding the
mechani sm HB 392 provides for comunities to work together to

address solid waste issues. He opined that this wll allow
communities in Southeast Al aska to take advantage of an econony
of scale for the disposal of solid waste. Ideally, it should

reduce the cost of handling municipal solid waste over tinme. He
informed the committee that the City Craig pays $200/ton for
solid waste to be shipped to the Lower 48. This proposed
authority provides the City of Craig the ability to partner with
other comunities in the region to develop a l|long-term cost-
ef fective solution. Furthernore, the funding to dispose of the
solid waste in Southeast can stay in the region and create jobs
in the region. M. Bolling concluded by noting that the Cty of
Crai g supports HB 392.

4:45:21 PM

ACTI NG CHAIR KOTT inquired as to how the shipping costs for the
Cty of Craig have increased over the | ast decade.

MR. BOLLI NG responded that about five years ago, the Cty of
Craig was paying $.04/ton to dispose of the solid waste that the
city collects fromits residents. Currently, it costs $.10/ton
to do so, which he characterized as a substantial increase. In
further response to Acting Chair Kott, M. Bolling clarified
that there is a chance of decreasing the aforenentioned costs.
However, he said that he is really looking for stability. One
of the advantages the authority mght bring, he opined, are nore
predictable costs for the Cty of Craig. In even further
response to Acting Chair Kott, M. Bolling said that he didn't
envision that the city's costs would increase during the initial
i nception of the |egislation.

4:47:05 PM

DAN EASTON, Deputy Commissioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC), stated that DEC
certainly supports HB 392, which it views as creating
opportunity for additional regional solid waste rmanagenent
systens in Al aska. He pointed out that for solid waste
managenent, larger is better in terns of funding and operating.
He noted that larger solid waste operations are less apt to
create environnmental or human health problens. Therefore, he
urged the commttee's support for HB 392.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if anything in HB 392 elim nates
DEC s regul ation of this industry.

MR. EASTON replied no, and clarified that DEC s statutes and
regul ations typically apply to a person who is defined very
broadly as a governnent, authority, person, and group.

4:48: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if DEC regulates landfills
t hroughout the state.

MR. EASTON replied yes. In further response to Representative
Rokeberg, M. Easton explained that DEC permts landfills
t hroughout the state and regulates their operation in terns of
human health and environnental i npact. In terms of the
financial regulation that the RCA does, he said he didn't know
what the RCA's role is for solid waste facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether a private corporation or
person that applied with DEC and net its requirenents as well as
| ocal requirenents, would be granted the permt to operate a
private landfill.

MR. EASTON replied yes.
4:49: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG directed the conmittee's attention to
page 2, line 22, of Version X, which is the enabling ordi nance
that allows an authority to be established and leaves it to
establish its powers and boundari es. He asked if the |anguage
allows the authority to establish its boundaries beyond the
lines of the municipality.

4:50: 29 PM

RUTH HAM LTON HEESE, Assistant Attorney General, Environnental
Section, Cvil Division - Juneau, Departnent of Law, related her
understanding that the intent of HB 392 is to nmke the
| egislation operate in simlar fashion to the port authority
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE = GUTTENBERG, referring again to page 2,
subsections (e) and (f), pointed out that if the authority
establ i shes boundaries outside of the nunicipality, then there
are no voters. He then pointed out that subsection (g) on page

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2006



2 refers to the authority organizing in a manner
by | aw al ready. "

not prohibited

[Due to technical difficulties, the recording fades from 4:51: 48
p.m to 4:52:18 p. m]

M5. HAM LTON HEESE indicated that the solid waste facility would
be operated within the region of the nunicipalities that band
t oget her.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG poi nted out that on page 4, paragraph
(14) gives the authority the power to exercise emnent domain
under AS 29. 35.030. He inquired as to what falls under AS
29. 35. 030.

M5. HAM LTON HEESE sai d she coul dn't answer that today.
4:52: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, referring to page 12, Section 3,
related his understanding that the authority would be regul ated
by the RCAif there was a conpeting utility.

M5. HAM LTON HEESE not ed her agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related his further wunderstanding that
nothing in the legislation would prohibit the establishment of
this authority when a regulated certificate of convenience was
al ready issued in a jurisdiction.

M5. HAM LTON HEESE said that she didn't know t he answer.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surmsed that there 1is regulatory
authority over a collection service, not a landfill, that
operates privately in a municipal jurisdiction. Therefore, he
stressed the inportance of determning whether this |egislation
would authorize the establishnent of a regional authority
notw thstanding an existing certificate of public convenience
and necessity.

V. HAM LTON-HESSE offered  her understanding that this
| egislation would freely allow municipalities to cone together
and operate, even in the presence of an existing facility.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG i nquired as to what would happen if the
muni ci pality had al ready agreed to exclusivity or a franchi se.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 6, 2006



M5. HAM LTON HEESE opi ned that contract |aw would conme into play
and perhaps prevent the municipality from becom ng wayward of a
preexi sting obligation. She further opined that it would depend
on the facts.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG  expressed concern t hat i f t he
| egi sl ation doesn't recognize that there is a regulated utility
operating that could be private. He related his belief that a
muni cipality could use an authority to run a conpany out of
business. He pointed out that the legislation indicates that if
there is conpetition, it would be regulated. However, the
| egislation doesn't prohibit the authority from entering the
territory [of an existing operator], which seens to nean that
the authority wouldn't need a certificate to operate.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON reiterated that the legislation allows
muni ci palities to join together to start an authority to provide
for unnet needs. She highlighted that each nunicipality that
enters the agreenent would have to conduct a vote of its
residents regardi ng whether they want to enter the authority.

4:57:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG opined that the aforenentioned doesn't
address his question. He inquired as to whether sideboards need
to be included such that other businesses are protected.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said that she didn't object to such an
anendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that Anchorage is a regional
authority already, and related his understanding that it would
have to go through the process outlined in HB 392.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON reiterated that this legislation allows
several nmunicipalities to cone together rather than just one.
She said this legislation wouldn't pertain a nunicipality that
was going to deal with its solid waste on its own.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG di scussed the garbage wars in Anchorage
and the cherry picking that occurs.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON specified that this |legislation doesn't
deal with conpanies at all.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that sonetines nunicipalities
don't |ike conpanies.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if any conpanies in the
[ Sout heast] area are perceived to be a regional authority and
operate under a certificate of convenience.

MR, POOL related that [Southeast Conference] has spoken wth

both of the private landfill owners in Southeast Al aska, both of
which are interested in participating at sonme  point.
Furthernore, the operator of the Juneau landfill could be the
operator of a regional landfill. M. Pool noted that the
Sout heast Conference believes in comerce as well as obtaining
the best price for this service. He said that the Southeast
Conference really doesn't care who provides the service. I n
fact, if a private conpany had come forward during the last 10
years and built a regional landfill, this legislation wouldn't
be before the commttee. However, he said he understood the

concerns, and suggested that perhaps the legislation could be
redrafted to exclude areas of the state that so desired.

5:01:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if any solid waste conpany is
regulated in the area, including collection services.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG infornmed the conmittee that to be
regul ated a conpany nust have over $300,000 in gross receipts.

5:02:16 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON referred to page 2, |line 7, which
speci fi es: "the governing body of a nunicipality may, by
ordi nance, create a regional solid waste managenent authority as
a public corporation of the municipality". She noted that she
is open to | anguage that woul d prevent the concerns st at ed.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT, wupon determning there were no further
guestions or witnesses to testify, closed public testinony. He
then inquired as to whether Representative Rokeberg had an
amendnent to address his concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wasn't interested in excluding

other parts of state. He restated his concern wth regard to
regul ation when there is already an existing regulated utility,
but said that he doesn't know that he has the answer. However

he maintained that [the authority] could be utilized as a tool
to get rid of a bad operator by a municipality.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 6, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the sane statenments and arguments
apply to any mnunicipal landfills under the current system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that per today's testinony,
landfills aren't regulated, only collection services are. The
landfills nmerely obtain a permt from DEC

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if |[|anguage could be inserted to
specify that this legislation doesn't apply to collection
services, if that's the intent of the sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON enphasized that she didn't want to put
into place too many |imts because [it mght Ilimt] the
authority's ability to organize and develop in a manner that's
best for the area, even if it includes an existing collection

conpany.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted his agreenent, but maintained his
concern with regard to possible difficulties with conpeting
utilities.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT said that Representative Rokeberg could work
with the sponsor between now and when the legislation goes to
t he House fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is any common |aw or
defense that an existing regulated utility could put forward to
def end against a predatory practice, were it to occur.

M5. HAMLTON HEESE replied that she cannot answer that, but
offered to take the question back to the appropriate person in
t he Departnent of Law.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG conment ed that Southeast Al aska is an
appropriate place for a regional authority, and therefore he
supported the [legislation]. He further comented that
Sout heast Al aska should establish a regional port authority as
wel | .

5:10: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report CSHB 392, Version 24-
LS1227\ X, Bullock, 3/2/06, out of comrittee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying three zero fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 392(L&C) was reported out the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Committee.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 6, 2006



5:11: 21 PM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

HB 51- EMPLOYER ASSN FOR WORKERS' COWP | NS

ACTING CHAIR KOIT announced that the next order of business
woul d be SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 51, "An Act
relating to nodifying the qualifications required for workers'
conpensation self-insurance and permtting enployers in the sane
trade or industry to form an enployer association for self-
i nsured workers' conpensation coverage; and providing for an
effective date.”

ACTING CHAIR KOIT informed the conmittee that it was not his
intent to nove the bill at this tine.

M CHAEL PAW.OABKI, Staff to Representative Kevin Myer, Al aska
State Legislature, informed the commttee that the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) addresses the issues of regulatory
oversight of self-insured groups and whether or not workers'

clainms would be paid in the event of an insolvency. In regard
to the regulatory oversight, he said that the CS shifts the
oversight of self-insured groups from the Departnent of Labor
and Workforce Developnment to the D vision of |nsurance. In
regard to the paynent of «clainms, he explained that severa

sections were added which deal with the rules the self-insured
groups would be required to follow to ensure paynent.

MR.  PAWOWBKI explained that Section 21.77.200 of the CS
requi res the association adopt a plan for paynent, which nust be
approved by the director of the Division of Insurance. The plan
woul d include an advance paynent of at |east 15 percent of the
total, with the remainder to be paid quarterly or nonthly. This

will ensure, based on actuarial accounting, that the self-
insured group has appropriate reserves to cover costs and
liabilities. He stated that "appropriate reserves" are defined
on page 12, Section 21.77.210. These are: actual clains,

clains incurred but not reported, reserves for uncollected
debts, and are based on the experience of other associations.
He said that at |east 65 percent of the noney collected nmust be
placed in an account to pay clains, wth the remining 35
percent put towards operating costs.

MR. PAW.OWSKI explained that workers' conpensation rates are

determ ned by the standard workers' conpensation system and the
CS does not change this. He said that the CS creates a benefit

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 6, 2006



for the self-insured groups by allowing the groups to plan
actuarially what the costs wll be. He said that Section
21.77.230 of the CS requires the self-insured group to collect
an additional assessnment to nake up for any short-fall. If this
is not done, he said, the director can require an additional
assessnent. He referred to page 11 and explained that if too
much noney is collected, the self-insured group nust receive
approval from the director before the noney is returned, which
ensures that there is enough noney to pay clains. He said that
the CS attenpts to build in as nuch oversight as possible. He
stated that the director would determne the anount of re-
i nsurance or excess insurance the group is required to purchase.
He sai d:

So, ... not only do we ensure [that the group]
coll ects enough noney, but they buy re-insurance and
excess insurance to limt the liability of loss on the
upsi de. So, you can't have a claim that wll ever
cost you nore than this, or, you cannot ever incur
costs in this aggregate. That's the insurance plan
that you require of the backup. Further, that's
determ ned by the director.

MR. PAW.OANBKI said that page 9 of the CS states that in the

event of a bankruptcy, the clains are still payable. He stated
that the joint and several liability provisions nean people are
pl edging their conpanies that the clains wll be paid. He

explained that this places the inpetus on the nenbers and the
director to ensure that there are enough reserve funds.

MR, PAW.OANBKI stated that the CS includes the requirenent of a

surety bond that will go to the state. In the event that all
the "checks and balances"” fail, there is a bond to pay the
cl ai ns. In conclusion, he said that the aforenentioned

additions are to ensure that workers' conpensation clains are
pai d.

MR. PAW.OABKI, in regard to reciprocal groups, stated that if a
reciprocal fails, the [debts] are referred to the guarantee
fund. He noted an instance when this occurred, and stated that
all the payees in the system were required to "pay in" to nmake

up the balance, which, in turn, caused workers' conpensation
rates to increase. He stated that if a self-insured group were
to fail, the joint and several liability, reserves, and bonds

would all be available to pay the clains, and the costs do not
fall back to the state. He said

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 6, 2006



The point of self-insurance is that these groups are
asking for the ability to take ownership of their
costs and obligations. To see a direct benefit for
the loss and safety prograns they put in, and to
really control the cost and their destiny. And that's
what a self-insured group allows themto do. It won't
put the burden on the rest of the state. ... The
attenpt of the commttee substitute is to come back to
the conmttee's questions and see if we can't get as
far toward the regulatory oversight and financial
oversi ght as possi bl e.

5:20:41 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked what happens to the self-insured
group and the remaining enployees if a "dom nant enployer”

retires.

VR. PAW.OWSKI replied that five enployers are required,
therefore renoval of one enployer would lead to the dissolution

of the self-insured group. However, he said, the bonds and
obligations would still exist to pay for the clains incurred
under the previous self-insured group. He noted that this is

beyond bankruptcy, selling or [any other issue that may arise].

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX nade a notion to adopt CSSSHB 51, Version
24-1S0233\S, Bailey, 3/3/06, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version S was before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a self-insured group would
receive a refund if it did not receive any workers' conpensation
cl ai ms and di ssol ves.

MR. PAW.OWASKI replied that any refunded noney would need to be
approved by the director. He surm sed that the noney would be
refunded in this scenario. He said that the director nmay hold
onto a potion of the nobney for a tine, as not all workers'
conpensation clainms are inmediately fil ed.

5:23:42 PM

ROBERT VOCEL, Pro G oup Managenent, stated that he is in support
of HB 51, which provides the state and enployers in the state a
broader opportunity to provide workers' conpensation insurance

He stated that this would give the enployers the control to
provide a safe working environnent and take care of injured
enpl oyees. He opined that this is to the benefit of the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- March 6, 2006



enpl oyers and enployees in the state, and added that this is not
a nechanism to save noney, but is intended to provide |ong-term
stability and continuity.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if, in M. Vogel's experience,
groups have voluntarily dissol ved.

MR. VOCEL replied that no groups have dissolved voluntarily or
involuntarily.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if any groups have becone
i nsol vent .

MR. VOGEL replied that no groups have becone insolvent. He
stated that the "key" issue is that the actuarial projections
are designed to collect enough noney, based on payroll exposure.
He explained that |osses are projected over the anount of

exposure, wth the intent of paying all |osses, clainms and
expenses with this anount. He said that in the event of a
bankruptcy or dissolution, the noney has already been collected
to cover the |osses and expenses that were created. He stated

that the actuarial projections which are required yearly is to
col |l ect enough noney based on experience. He explained that it
can take time for all of the costs and expenses to be known, and
added that if the projection is less than was actually needed

smal | adj ustnents can be nade to collect the noney over tine.

MR. VOCGEL, in response to an earlier question, said that the
self-insured group is pooling funds to cover expenses, rather

than paying on an individual basis. He stated that the
actuarial analysis considers all losses for all of the nenbers
during the tine that they were active in the group. He said
that if, when the group dissolves, the director approves the
return of funds, the division will retain a pool of nobney to pay
cl ai ms. He stated that the joint and several liability
agreenment obligates each nenber for the liability during the
time they were in the group. | f the amount retained for clains
is not enough, the division will approach the nenber(s) who are

no longer a part of the self-insured group to ensure paynent.
5:30:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the premuns are for surety
bonds and "stop | oss" insurance.

MR. VOCEL replied that typically, the excess insurance market
charges 12-15 percent for excess and aggregate reinsurance. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- March 6, 2006



noted that this is dependent upon the deductible |ayer the group
sel ect s. Generally, he said, the deductible is $500,000-
$750,000 with an aggregate of 100-110 percent of prem uns. He
noted that this is not charged to the nmenbers in addition to the
premuns, but is what the group pays to the excess insurance

conpany.

MR. VOGEL, in response to further questions, stated that a
surety bond is an ampbunt to cover expected clains and is not
equal to the premuns. He said that the director would give the
anount and this would be negotiated based on the nenbers

experience | evel.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if surety bonds are available in
t he market.

MR, VOGEL said yes, and added that generally, these are through
t he excess carriers.

5:33:10 PM
RAY HI CKEL, President, Anchorage Honme Builders Association

(AHBA), stated that the AHBA, the Alaska State Hone Buil ders
Association (ASHBA), and the Associated General Contractors -

Board of Realtors support the |egislation. He said that the
AHBA and the ASHBA would like to have "control over [its]
destiny." He said that this will enable the AHBA to keep and

reward capabl e enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the $1 mllion net worth would
be affordabl e.

MR H CKEL replied that he does not believe the $5 mllion wll
be a problem

MR HICKEL, in response to questions, said that the AHBA
initiated the bill in an effort to keep the ASHBA from being
burdened by the tine and cost of working on it. He said that
t he Fairbanks Honme Builders Association is welcone to join the
[self-insured] group at any tinme. He stated that while the AHBA
asked for support fromthe ASHBA, it did not ask for noney.

5:35:36 PM
LARRY PARTUSCH, Anchorage Honme Buil ders Association (AHBA), said

that he is in support of the legislation. He said that the AHBA
has been working on the bill for two years and has worked wth

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- March 6, 2006



the [Division of Insurance] to address its concerns. He stated
that being industry specific allows the self-insured groups to
police thensel ves better than other groups would be able to. He
said that the intention is to get injured enployees back to work
as soon as possi bl e.

5:37: 37 PM

ACTING CHAIR KOTT, referring to page 1, line 9, of the CS, noted
that it reads "the director my issue a self-insurance
certificate;" however, on page 5, lines 4-5, it reads "the
director shall issue a certificate of self-insurance."

MR, PAW.OWSKI surm sed that this is an incongruence that shoul d
be fixed and added that if this is not the case, he will |ook
into the reasoni ng behind the difference.

ACTI NG CHAIR KOTT stated that any issues with the bill should be
di scussed before the next conmttee hearing. Therefore, HB 51
was hel d over

5:39:11 PM

HB 424- MORTGAGE LENDI NG

ACTING CHAIR KOTT announced that the final order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 424, "An Act relating to nortgage
| enders and persons who engage in activities relating to
nort gage | endi ng; and providing for an effective date."

ACTING CHAIR KOTT noted that the commttee packet includes a
proposed conmmttee substitute (CS). He recalled that one of the
mai n concerns expressed at the previous hearing was that the
legislation didn't protect the public in the appropriate manner.
He then pointed out that the commttee packet should also
i nclude a new fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to adopt CSHB 424, Version 24-
LS1504\F, Bannister, 3/1/06, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version F was before the conmttee.

5:40: 55 PM
KENNETH  GAI N, Secretary/ Treasurer, | ndependent Lenders of
Al aska, explained that the major change enbodied in Version F is

to include nortgage brokers since the original l|egislation only
applied to nortgage |enders. The nortgage bankers are nobst of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- March 6, 2006



the large nortgage lenders in Alaska and they often act as a
| ender tenporarily until a nunber of nortgages can be pooled to
be resold. If the original |egislation had passed, the nortgage
bankers woul d' ve been required to be licensed as the independent
| enders, while the conpetitor, nortgage brokers, wouldn't have
been required to be I|icensed. Therefore, the request was to
i nclude nortgage brokers in order to provide for a |level playing
field. [Wth the aforenentioned change] a nunber of technica
matters had to be addressed, such as the l|location at which they
coul d operate. Version F makes it clear that the only thing
that is regulated is identifying the location of the office in
order for state records. M. Gin related that his group, which

consists of small Ilenders lending their own noney, isn't
"particularly crazy" about regulation. However, the group
recogni zes that Alaska is one of the last states to adopt
regul ati ons. Furthernore, the group recognizes that the

Division of Banking & Securities receives about 20 conplaints
per week, which indicates that there are problems to which the

division is currently unable to respond. M. Gain nentioned
that there is pending federal legislation requiring that all
states have sonme form of [|icensing. As a result, the

organi zati on recogni zed the need for the division to be able to
audit records and perform background checks, all of which costs

nmoney and results in the need for fees. Therefore, all in al

HB 424 is a reasonable bill that provides a lot of consuner
protection by giving the division authority wthout placing
undue burden on busi nesses. "All in all | believe it's a good
bill that wll help address a very significant problem" he
opi ned. Wth regard to the lack of a provision for conpetency

testing, M. Gin pointed out that HB 424 |icenses conpani es.
M. Gain concluded by announcing support for HB 424 [Version F].

5:46: 10 PM

MR GAIN, in response to Representative Rokeberg, replied that
not everyone wll be happy wth this |egislation. He pointed
out that [the nortgage lending industry] is one of the |ast
professions in Al aska to be |icensed.

5:47:11 PM

JOHN MARTI N, Executive Manager, Al aska Myrtgage Sol utions, began
by informing the comrittee that [Al aska Mdrrtgage Solutions] is a
net branch operation perform ng nortgage |oans throughout the
state. He nentioned that he has e-mailed his coments to
commttee menbers. He then highlighted that sone of the
| anguage is vague, specifically he suggested changing the term

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 31- March 6, 2006



"nortgage conpanies" to "nortgage entities" in order to include
corporations, limted liability corporations (LLCs), and sole
proprietorships. As witten, Ver si on F would exenpt
approximately two-thirds of all loan originators in the state
whi ch doesn't provide residents any "good at all." Furthernore,
the legislation doesn't provide for much consunmer protection as
there is no provision for originator |icensing.

MR. MARTIN pointed out that in Alaska real estate agents are
licensed and nmust work for a broker. He opined that a simlar,
two-step process should be wutilized for [nortgage |enders].
Furthernore, there should be conprehensive |egislation such that
all parties involved know where they stand. He then noted that
portions of language in the legislation is derived from the
division, which utilizes |anguage that pertains primarily to
depository organizations. However, nost lenders in the state
don't have a depository relationship with their clients and thus
he suggested that such |anguage should be nodified or renoved.
He then turned to licensing, which he opined should be done
every two years rather than annually. Wth regard to the
expense of licensing, M. Martin opined that it wll cause an
increase in financing for the consuner.

5:51: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN inquired as to an estimate of the increase
in cost to consuners nmentioned by M. Martin.

MR. MARTIN replied that it's difficult to estinmate because the
| egislation specifies that there will be an audit process, which
he opined would be quite expensive. Furt hernore, one nust take
into account the cost of licensing as well as the $10 fee for
each transaction, as specified in the |egislation. M. Mrtin
said that it's a bit premature to specify how nmuch it will cost
i ndi vi dual consuners.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN opined that paying extra to ensure a
consuner purchasing a house is dealing with sonmeone who is
properly licensed is a small price to pay.

5:52:58 PM

JOHN  CARMAN, Pr esi dent Hone State Mbortgage; Legi sl ative
Commttee Chair, Alaska Mrtgage Bankers Association, recalled
when he began nmeking nortgage |oans back in 1972 with Nationa
Bank of Alaska. At that time, nost nortgage | oans were made by
nati onal banks and state chartered savings and |oans, which are

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 32- March 6, 2006



regul ated entities. However, today nost |oans are nade by
nortgage brokers and nortgage bankers, which aren't currently
regul ated entities. Simlar changes in other states have been
addressed with |icensing. M. Carnman related that for the past
five years he has been working to get |egislation passed, from
whi ch he understands that it's inpossible to draft |egislation
that will rmake everyone happy. Wth regard to conments that
banks and credit wunions should play by the sane rules as
nortgage bankers, banks and credit unions have always been
regul at ed. However, the nortgage bankers and brokers haven't
been regul at ed. "That's not to say that they don't have |aws
out there that they have to go by, it's just that there's no one
to enforce those laws, no one to conplain to, and no one to | ook
at it," he pointed out. He recalled that the division received
about 600 conplaints last year, although the division can't do
anyt hi ng because there is no enforcenment nechani sm M. Carnman

related his belief that [Version F|] is good |egislation. He
added that Alaska should have originator |icensing, although
there are many issues surrounding it that need to be addressed.
However, conpany licensing needs to be in place first. Many
provisions wthin conpany |icensing protects consuners, and
furthernore instituting a nechanism for the division will help

with enforcenent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether Version F would license
t he busi nesses for which the | oan originators work.

MR. CARMAN replied yes.
5:58:41 PM
JOE BRAMMER, Manager, 1st Metropolitan Mortgage; Legislative

Board, Al aska Associ ation of Mrtgage Brokers, related that over
last 25 years he has observed the need for regulations and

consuner protection legislation in the nortgage industry. He
said, "I agree that we need and |I'm whol eheartedly a staunch
proponent for independent l|egislation in Alaska for all |enders,
all brokers, and all nortgage |oan originators." However, he
pointed out that nortgage |enders and brokers are two very
separate and distinct sets. For instance, |enders accept
nmont hly paynents from consumers and col |l ect noney from consuners
to pay property taxes and honmeowner's insurance. Furt her nore,

| enders are named on the deed of trust as the beneficiary and
own the note. Moreover, |lenders have the ability to forecl ose,
set interest rates for the consuner, and to issue |ocked
commi t ment s. Lenders also have the authority to deny a
consuner's request for a hone | oan. M. Brammer opined that

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 33- March 6, 2006



| enders and brokers aren't adequately and fairly regul ated under
Version F. Al though the lender and the broker offer the sane
product to the consunmer, each uses different delivery vehicles
to get to the narket. The aforenmentioned truly sets the | ender
and the broker apart from each other. Version F attenpts to
regul ate both, but as proposed it doesn't work. Thi s
| egi slation, he stressed, needs major nodifications because in
its current formit derails any attenpt at consuner protection

M. Branmer related that Version F shouldn't be allowed to pass

from conmtt ee. Under Version F, bankers are exenpt from the
guidelines and regulations that they penned while the brokers
had no input. In closing, M. Branmmer suggested that a fair

representation of Alaska brokers, bankers, and Ilenders to
collectively work to nodify this legislation to make it workabl e

and enforceable while protecting consumers. Additionally, M.
Brammer opined that consunmers deserve to have all |enders,
brokers, and nortgage loan originators |icensed. Currently,
Version F includes eight exenptions of which he opined wll
allow about two-thirds of all originators in Alaska wll be
exenpted. "The people who need to be regulated are not going to
be regulated under this bill, and those are the nortgage | oan
originators,” he said. "If we do not mandate |oan officer

licensing as part of this legislation, which would include
conpetency testing and continuing education requirenments, this
commttee substitute serves no purported purpose of consuner
protection,” he opined.

6: 03: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if |egislation has been introduced
to solve the concerns expressed by M. Bramer.

MR. BRAMMER replied that the Al aska Association of Mrtgage
Brokers and the Al aska Association of Mrtgage Bankers had a

joint neeting in Decenber. Both groups agreed on what the
nortgage |loan originator licensing should be, save the required
bondi ng for each nortgage origi nator. He recalled that earlier

testinmony related that it's inpossible to include the nortgage
originators in this licensing |egislation because there are too

many i ssues. However, he opined that there are no nore issues
involved in licensing nortgage |oan originators than nortgage
br okers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related that the legislature isn't

interested in getting into a "turf war." He then rem nded
everyone that one of the main goals of this comrttee is to
protect the consuner. He pointed out that he has been in the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 34- March 6, 2006



real estate industry for 30 years and the legislature for 12
years during which tine he said he hasn't seen any proposed
| egislation fromthe nortgage brokers, which is of concern.

MR. BRAMMER infornmed the commttee that nenbers of the Al aska
Associ ation of Mrtgage Brokers have been working w th Roger
Prince to develop three individual bills. Those three bills
woul d address nortgage originators, |enders, and brokers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG questi oned, "Were is the other bill?"

MR. BRAMMER replied, "That's our point." He opined that the
other legislation needs to be included in HB 424 in order to
truly protect the consuner.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related that at times portions of
| egislation have to nove along when ready, even if other
portions aren't. This legislation is unique in that it falls
under the Division of Banking & Securities and regulates
busi nesses whereas Title 8 usually regul ates individuals.

6: 07: 57 PM

MR. BRAMVER, in response to Representative LeDoux, clarified
that his concern is that the proposed legislation includes too
many exenptions that wll have the effect of exenpting many
nort gage brokers and bankers from conplying with the conditions
of the | egislation.

6: 08:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surm sed then that M. Branmer was saying
that the legislation doesn't go far enough.

MR. BRAMVER answered that this legislation places certain
restraints and constraints on businesses, such as collecting a

fee from each transaction that the broker closes. However,
there are 11 <classes that are exenpt from the licensing.
Moreover, the legislation provides for the audit process of
nort gage brokers, although there is nothing to audit. Si nce

many provisions of this legislation don't apply, M. Brammer
opined that the legislation should be nodified so that it does
serve the consuner interest rather than exenpting two-thirds of
t he group.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD inquired as to M. Brammer's thoughts
with regard to regulating those in the nortgage industry

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 35- March 6, 2006



operating in Alaska who are out-of-state and outside of the
country.

MR. BRAMVER highlighted that this legislation doesn't regulate
Internet |enders, nost of which are a subsidiary or affiliate of
a bank and are exenpt wunder this |egislation. M. Brammer
opined that this legislation should be nore far-reaching in
order to protect unscrupulous |enders who are |ocated outside
the state or the country. The aforenentioned can best be
acconplished by requiring individual l|icensing of all nortgage
originators who are going to do business in the state.

6:12: 27 PM
CRI' S SKI NNER, Pr esi dent / Br oker, Kel star Financial of Al aska

Mort gage Conpany; Legislative Commttee, Al aska Association of
Mort gage Brokers, began by characterizing the |egislation as

"hol | oW due to the lack of regulating nortgage | oan
originators. She opined that it's a known fact that the
majority of consuner conplaints arise at the nortgage |oan
originator |evel. She further opined that the |I|egislation
illustrates a msunderstanding of the I|ending process. She

echoed earlier testinony that nortgage | oan originator |icensing
and continuing education nmust be incorporated in order to
provi de true consuner protection. Addi tionally, this
| egislation allows far too many exenptions, which again isn't in
the best interest of the consuner. These exenptions, she said,
target small independent brokers and is questionable with regard
to fair trade and small business protection. Therefore, M.
Ski nner proposed the creation of a task force conposed of
| enders, bankers, brokers, and nortgage loan originators to

prepare |egislation enconpassing all aspects of the |ending
process and cover |icensing and education for each |evel. The
af orenenti oned would ensure true consuner protection and fair
t rade. Ms. Skinner inforned the committee that nenbers of the
real estate community in Wasilla have provided witten testinony
on this |egislation. I n conclusion, she urged the conmttee to

take their comments as well as her own into consideration prior
to passing this |legislation.

6:15: 06 PM

TIM KELLY, Lobbyist, |Independent Lenders of Al aska, began by
relating the Independent Lenders of Alaska's support for
[ Version F]. He then informed the commttee that the Division
of Banking & Securities has possession of |egislation that would
license and regulate nortgage l|oan officers or originators.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 36- March 6, 2006



Therefore, it's nerely a matter of having that |[|egislation
drafted by legislative drafting. The Independent Lenders of
Al aska, he related, take the position that the |I|egislation
before the conmittee, which enconpasses two of three bills,
shoul d be forwarded out of conmttee.

6:16: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that he is a licensed real estate
broker, although he is <currently in referral status. Wth
regard to Version F, Representative Lynn opined that it's better
to have sone protection now rather than none at all.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG st ated hi s agreenent.

ACTING CHAIR KOIT, wupon determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

6: 18: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved that the conmittee adopt Amendnent
1, as follows:

Page 3, lines 2-4;
Del ete "agent"
I nsert "licensee"

There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG offered to work with those interested on
legislation relating to [nortgage | oan originators].

6: 20: 20 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 424, \Version 24-
LS1504\ F, Bannister, 3/1/06, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 424(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.

6: 20: 56 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
6:21 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 37- March 6, 2006



